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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST. ~

DIRECTORS' REPORT x .
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

.

The Directors present their Annual Report together with the Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’'s Report
of the charitable company (referred to thereon as “Avanti Schools Trust”) for the period 1 September 2021 to 31
August 2022. The Annual Report serves the purpose of both a Trustees’ Report and a Directors’ Report under
company law. .

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and
comply with the charitable company’'s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Companies Act 2006, the
Charity Commission's document’ ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the
ESFA

Introductlon - ' ’ ‘ ‘
‘The Academy Trust operates 12 schools (free schools and academies) in the London Region, South West and
Midlands. Its academles have a combined pupil capacity ‘of 6,990 and had a roll of 5,280 in October 2022.

Structure governance and management

.Constitution -

Avanti Schools Trust is a Multi-Academy Trust, a company limited "by guarantee and an exempt charity. The
. charitable company’s memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the
.Academy Trust. The trustees of Avantl Schools Trust are also the dlrectors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. .

Avanti Schools Trust was incorporated on 26 January 2011 and obtained Academy Status from 1 August 2011. The
Trust obtained Multi-Academy Status from 9 August 2012. .

The charitable compan‘y operates as:

Avanti House Secondary School

Krishna Avanti Primary School, Harrow
Krishna Avanti Primary School, Croydon
Avanti Court Primary School

Krishna Avanti Primary School, Leicester
Avanti House Primary School

Avanti Fields School

Avanti Gardens School

Avanti Hall School

Avanti Park School

Avanti Meadows School S .
Avanti Grange Secondary. School - Opened 1 September 2022

Members' liability T :

Each member of the charrtable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up'while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such
amount as may be requrred not exceedlng £10, for the debts and I|ab|I|t|es contracted before he/she ceased to be
a member.

Directors' indemnities
The company subscribes to the .Risk Protection Arrangements (RPA) provrded\ y the DfE The. RPA provides .
- Governors Llabllrty which includes Directors within its definitions.




AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED).
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 A'UGUS T 2022

Method of recruitment and appomtment or eIectlon of Directors
Members and Directors

The first members of the Academy Trust were the signatories to the Memorandum. Subsequent members of the
company shall comprlse any person appointed under Article 15A.

. The number of Directors shall not be less than three but (unless otherwise determined by ordmary resolution) shall
not be subject to any maximum. :

Subject to Articles 48-49 and 63, the Academy Trust shall have the foIIowmg Dlrectors

a. up to 15 Directors, appointed under Article 50;

b. any Staff Directors, if appointed under Article 50AA; ,

c. the Chief Executive Officer, if appointed under Article 50B;

d. Academy Directors appointed under Article 51 or Article 52; :

e. a minimum of 2 Parent Directors appointed under Articles 53-56, in the event that no Local Governing Bodies are
established under Article 100a or if no provision is made for at least 2 Parent Local Governors on each established,
Local Governing Body pursuant to Article 101A or on any Advisory Body.

The Trust may also have any Co-opted Director appointed under Article 58.

The term of office for any Director shall be 4 years, except for the Chief Executive Officer (CEO).

Policies and procedures adopted for the inductidn and training of Directors

During the period under review the Directors held regular meetings. The training and induction provided for new
‘Directors will depend on their existing experience. All relevant Directors "are provided with copies of policies,
procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as
Directors. As there are normally only a few new D|rectors in a period, |nduct|on tends to be done informally and is
tallored specifically to the individual.

A

Organisational structure )

The Board of Directors is the Legal Governing Body of every Avanti school and has ultimate accountability and
legal responsibility for all Avanti schools, including aII the statutory responsibilities of school governors and
accountability for the quality of educational, prowsmn and school effectiveness.

The Board of Directors has appointed the following commlttees Pay, Flnance Audit & Risk, Learmng & Teaching

and People, Compliance & Governance. The Board of Directors has also appointed School Stakeholder

Committees (SSCs) for each Avanti school. SSCs provide perspectives from various stakeholder groups (staff, -

parents and the wider community) on the day-to-day functioning of the school in order to support the school's work.

SSCs are not delegated any powers of the Board of Dlrectors and do not carry any statutory respon3|b|I|t|es Avantl
schools do not have local governing bodies.

The Directors delegate the day-to- day responsibility of running the Acaderrty Trust to the senior menagement team
- led by the Chief Executive Officer. The day-to-day running of individual academies is delegated to the senior
leadership team, led by the principal.




AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key manaqement personnel

The setting of pay and benefits must represent good value for money and take into account market factors and the
performance. of the trust (both financial and non-financial). In setting the pay and remuneration of the academy’s
trust key management personnel and any benchmarks, parameters.or criteria used in setting their pay, the Avanti
Schools Trust Central Team & School Support Staff Pay Policy is used. All roles in the trust have been through job
_evaluation and assigned a grade and scale as.a result. A Pay Decision means any decision by a Decision Maker
listed to award a pay rise or to not award a pay rise in respect of an employee.

Executive pay is determined by the Remuneration Committee, which is a sub-committee of the Board. The

membership of the committee does not include any employees and there are no_conflicts of interest. Trust

Executive pay decisions are recommended to the Committee by the CEO. For decisions regardmg the CEO’s pay -
the Trust Chair makes recommendatlons to the Commlttee

Annual targets are set for each of ‘the directors and these are reviewed in an appraisal’ cycle along with the
employees self-review and any other evidence deemed necessary. This appraisal is carried out by the CEO or Trust .
Chair (for AST CEQ). Based on this appraisal a recommendatlon for progression will be made in Ilne W|th the pay

policy.
In addition to the Remuneration Committee, implementation of this policy is monitored by the HR team and board in
particular concerning any equality or diversity issues. Each year the HR team will recommend to the Committee any .

" company-wide pay scale increases (% based). This is based on government recommendations, inflation and
discussions with other academies. T ‘

The above process was discussed with the DfE last year and they were satisfied with the method undertaken.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials . -

Number of employees who-were relevant union officials o '

during the relevant period , A o -
Fuil-time equivalent employee number ' -

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time : ‘ Number of employees
0%. . : : -
1%-50% - ' 4 ' -
51%-99% ‘ : : -
100% - ’ : , o -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time , .

Total cost of facility time o -
Total pay bill’ -
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time ' -

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of . .
total paid facility tlme hours ‘ . -




AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Engagement with employees )
The engagement of our employees at AST is fundamental in aII the work we do. All staff members are inducted at a
school level and attend a trust-wide induction. During this induction, the company ethos and goals are discussed.

We spend time looking at The Avanti Way and what this means for employees and how we share this common
vision for all staff and schools. We use videos and testimonials of current members of staff.

\

We hold annual wellness retreats, and this is an opportunity for us to develop the common awareness on the part
of all employees of the factors affecting the performance of the company. We also hold various whole staff
conferences for staff to network, connect and align further with the ethos. .

Individual targeté performance management and appraisals are aligned with trust performance targets. The trust is
aware that each of our schools has unique characteristics and we work _closely with our Principals to ensure that
their needs, as well as the trusts, are met.

. We operate an. open-door policy within our senior leadership team and welcome feedback from ali levels of

. employees. Several CPD programs have been set up to develop employees in the company including a Women in

Leadership program. All trust policies are easily accessible on thé HR intranet and we aim to work on"updating the
communications we publish here.

Employee engagement surveys are completed at the school level to gain an understanding of how employees feel
working in the Trust. )

Our safer recruitment policy ensures that a person with a disability is treated fairly and in line with the Equality Act
2010. If a person becomes disabled while working for the Trust a referral is made to an Occupational Health
provider and we work closely with them, the employee and-the line manager to ensure all the reasonable
adjustments are made. Again, regarding the training, development and promotion of any disabled person, the Trust
follows the Equality Act 2010 and ensures no discrimination takes place. All roles are posted on the careers section
of our website and we encourage people to apply for roles they are interested in. Our appraisals can identify any
knowledge gaps and we are working towards providing CPD that prepares people for the natural career'
. progression within the company : .

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Academy Trust _

Our trusts long term sustalnablllty and success relies on the trust and confidence of its stakeholders We put our
pupils best interests first, invest in our employees, serve the communities where our schools are based and strive
to support genume improvement in the overall education system. ' .

Various parts.of this director’s report prowde .examples of how we discharge our duties to our various stakeholders
including pupils, employees and the wider community. In addition, management and trustees seek to understand
and incorporate stakeholder views into decision making through various methods lncludlng stakeholder committees
and surveys from parents, staff and pupils.

The trustees and management operate the business in a responsible manner with the aim of ensuring that Avanti
maintains a reputation.for high standards of business conduct and good governance in partlcular in relation to
- requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook . .
. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations
" The Academy has relationships with the following organisations:

+ Govinda's Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary.

. Avanti Services Limited, which is a Whlolly-owned subsidiary.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Objectives and activities ' . ' !

Obijects and aims ) :

The principal activity of the Academy Trust is to advance for the publlc benefit educatron in the United Kingdom, in
particular, but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, by establishing, maintaining, carrying on,
managing and developing schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum. _

All schools in the Avanti Schools Trust prepare pupils for their respectlve life-journéys by promotlng educational
\excellence character formation and spmtual insight.

Objectives, strategies and activities -

Educational Excellence

Our vision for educational excellence is one where deeply mspnred teachers nurture joyful students and nourish
their innate passion for learning. Learning is a quest to discover each student’s unique gifts and potential and lay
the foundation for their lifelong journey of learning. This is inseparable from high academic standards, where a
challenging holistic curriculum cultivates independently thoughtful and reﬂectrve students by working towards a
sense of mastery, emphasrsrng depth, and not just breadth. :

. Character Formatlon

Our vision for character formation is one where virtues are taught by example and a supportive community of
learners fosters a powerful sense of individual and collective purpose. Learning develops for these conscious .
changemakers as a quest for making the world a better place, starting with oneself. The capacity to internalise and
_ put into practice what we have learned is the true test of learning. Building this capacity demands an experiential,
virtues-led curriculum that embraces collaboration, custodianship and global perspectives. -

Spiritual Insight

Our vision for spiritual insight is one where our rnterconnectedness with all living beings and with the universe,
urges -acts born out of humility and love, and the.Self is perceived beyond its layers of coverings. Learning
blossoms for these.seekers as a quest for self—discovery and opens the door to their unlimited potential; an antidote
to the emptiness of a materialistic or mechanistic worldview. The curriculum unveils the possibilities of sacredness
and transcendence at every moment and so engenders a deeply positive attitude to life, endunng happmess and
heartfelt relatlonshlps .

Key objectives
Key objective for the year was to further stabilise the three SW schools and welcome Avantl Grange and Meadows
into our Trust.

Public benefit o : . _

The Directors confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission’s general
guidance on Public Benefit when reviewing the Academy Trust's aim and -objectives and in planning future
activities. The Directors consider that the Academy Trust's aims are demonstrably to the public benefit.
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' DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Strategic report
Achievements and performance
Avanti House Secondary School
The school opened as an all-through school in September 2012 as a free school. The two schools were formally
demerged as of September 2017. During the academic year 2017-18 a short inspection of the secondary school
“was carried out by OFSTED. Overall the school was given a “Good” rating. -

A

Comments from the OFSTED report'

Through working as a team and developing a shared culture of hlgh expectatlons you and your leadership team
have created a learning community that pupils say ’feels like a famlly' "

“Pupils also commented on how much they appreciate the guidance and encouragement that the‘y receive from
staff at their school. Pupils felt that the extra help you and your teachers give them is aIIowmg them to lmprove their
work."

“.... more challenging work has resulted in well above average progress at the end of key stage 4 for pupils,
including the most able. For current pupils, this rapid progress is also evident i in the way they talk about what and
how they learn." .

Krishna Avanti Primary School (Harrow)

The school joined the AST family in September 2012 as a convertor Academy. In the academic year 2017-18 an
inspection of the school was carried out under section 5 of the Educatlon Act 2005. Overall the school was given a
“Good” rating.

Comments from the OFSTED report:

“Behaviour is outstanding. Pupils are polite and kind to each other. They show great respect for other people's
views and incidents of poor behaviour are extremely rare."

“Pupils are hughly reflective about their own beliefs and can compare their faith with other religions. They learn to
respect other people's faiths from an early age and know that everyone needs to be treated equally. As one pupul
said, 'Instead of judging others, we look at how we can change ourselves'."

“Around the school there is a calm and harmonlous atmosphere.”

- “Pupils value their education. They love coming to school and take pride in it. Attendance is above the national
average." . . ‘

Krishna Avanti Prlmary School (Lelcester)

The school opened in September 2011 in the first wave of free schools. In the academic year 2016-17 an
inspection of the school was carried out under section 8 of the Education Act 2005. Overall the school was given a
“Good rating.

Comments from the OFSTED report

..the proportions of pupils, including disadvantaged pUleS who achleved expected levels in readmg, writing and
mathematlcs by the end of key stage 1, were above the national figures.”

You have ensured that the school is’ underplnned by the values of respect self discipline, integrity, gratitude,
courage and empathy. Pupils understand these values well and they are evident on displays around the school.
Classrooms are bright and stimulating, with pupils’ work in a wide range of subjects on display.”
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

“You now have in place a strong.senior leadership team who are knowledgeable and enthusiastic about their roles.
They share an openness and honesty regardung their'practice and are keen to learn from other schools, both locally
and from within the trust.” .

“Parents are overwhelmingly supportive of the school. They told me that their chlldren are happy, safe and makmg S

good progress One parent who had recently moved their child from another school commented, ‘We are ecstatic!”

“The pupils | spoke with said overwhelmungly that they are happy, maklng good progress and feel safe. One pupil
described the school to me as ‘Perfect!’ They are confident that bullying does not occur at Krishna Avanti and that
behaviour both inside classrooms and on the playground is good. Pupils relish the wide range of extra curncular
activities that you offer, including karate, ballet, football, cricket, sewing and chess.”

" Avanti House Primary School
The school opened in September 2017 (de- merger from secondary) It recewed its first OFSTED in 2019-20. The
overall rating is Good with outstanding behaviour and attitudes; personal development and early years provision.

Comments from the OFSTED report:

Pupils describe Avanti as ‘a very special place’. As the school has grown over the last couple.of years, it has
managed to retain its family ethos and strong community spirit. Pupils of all ages get on- well together. Staff are
united in their aim to enable every pupil to achieve highly and to leave the school as a well-rounded individual, with
strong foundations for future learning.

Pupils know that staff listen to them. Pupils’ ideas are taken seriously. The school council has recently been
involved in designing the new playground. Pupils look after each other. Younger pupils told us that ‘the buddy bus
stop in the playground actually works’. Pupils told us ‘that they feel safe in school. Bullying is very rare but is always
dealt with efficiently. . .

.Leaders and all staff place a strong emphasis on promoting pupils’ character and their personal development.
These are key features of the ‘Avanti Way’ and the school's aims. Pupils develop a strong sense of self-belief and
an understanding of respect and tolerance. Older pupils told us all about different types of family, for example, and -
we saw pupils discussing suffering in the world and what they could do to put an end to it.

Avanti Court Prlmary School . :
The school opened as a primary school in September 2012 as a voluntary-aided school. The school converted to
an Academy-on 1 December 2015.. During the year 2021 -22 there was a full OFSTED inspection.

Comments from the OFSTED report:

" Pupils are incredibly respectful of one another and of all staff. They understand the school values and model them
proudly. The school has a calm atmosphere. Pupils say that the daily meditation sessions and weekly yoga help
them keep calm.”

“Leaders have carefully designed the cdrriculum so that it is ambitious and well sequenoed Most subjects are led
by experienced staff with secure subject knowledge. In these subjects teaching is strong, and pupils make good
progress. Pupils retain |mportant knowledge and build on it over time.” -

“Leaders have ensured that a stro‘ng safeguardlng culture exists across the school. All staff and trustees receive
regular training on safeguarding matters. They are all clear about their responsibilities.”

“Staff are extremely proud to work at the school. They value the care and help they receive from senior leaders.
They recognise that steps are taken to make their workload manageable.”
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" Krishna Avanti Primary School (Croydon)
The school opened in September 2016. It received its first OFSTED in.2018-19. The overall rating is Good.

Comments from the OFSTED report:

Pupils understand the school's values and bring them to life in the positive and gentle way they behave towards
one another

Attendance is well above the national average for similar schools and has improved even more in the current year.
Leaders’ excellent relatlonshlps with parents ensure that, when pupils do miss school ‘their attendance rapidly
improves. .

The systematic and consistently effective teaching ‘of reading -ensures that pupils make excellent progress over
time. The proportion of Year 1 pupils reaching the expected standard in phonics exceeds the national average.

Pupils who afrive at the school speaking little English make particularly strong progress. As a result, they rapidly
catch up with others in their class. .

. The school's work to promote pupils’ personal development and welfare is good. The curriculum is implemented
effectively and- ensures that pupils understand the school's values. For example, pupils realise they can
demonstrate integrity by continuing to cooperate even when they think adults are not watching them.

Avanti Fields Schoo!

The school opened in temporary accommodation in September 2018 as a 4-16 all-through school. In September
2021 it moved to its new permanent site and as of September 2022 the Primary phase has opened including a
nursery. The school has very quickly established a strong local reputation in the area and we believe will be
oversubscribed in the years to come. The school has not yet received an OFSTED visit.

Avanti Meadows Primary ‘School
The school opened in September 2021 as a Local Authority presumption school to accommodate the housmg
development in Bishops Stortford North . Due to the delayed progress of the housing development, pupil's growth
remains a challenge. The school has not yet received an OFSTED visit.

South West schools \

These three separate inadequate former Steiner academies were transferred to Avanti Schools Trust in November
2019 (Avanti Gardens School (Bristol), Avanti Park School (Frome) and: Avanti Hall School (Exeter)). Since the
transfer we have undertaken a curriculum review and a major staff restructuring programme. We have and will
continue to work closely with ESFA colleagues who are supporting our ambition to transform these schools. The
schools have not yet received an OFSTED grading. ' -

-10-
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Key performance indicators
The following KPis would apply to all Avanti Schools Trust schools.

The quality of educat:on
This KPI seeks to evaluate school improvement strategles which include:

* « The extent to which the curriculum sets out the knowledge and skills that pupils gain in each key stage; the
way the curriculum is taught and assessed; the progress pupils make and attainment at the end of each
key stage. (including the readiness of students in the sixth form for the next stage in their education, going
on to appropriate, high-quality destinations)

. Evaluation. of the quality of learning, teaching and progress, as evidenced by pupils’ work in.books, lesson
observations/learning walk and discussion with senior and middle leaders, staff and groups of pupils.

« Focus on how AST schools are closing the achievement gap. between different groups of learners
(including disadvantaged pupils and pupils with SEND) in AST schools in comparison to those nationally.

' Behaviour and attitudes
This KPI seeks to evaluate:
. The links between the distinct Avanti ethos and values and the Iearmng, social behaviours and attitudes
that pupils develop over time.
« How'leaders and staff have created a safe, calm, orderly and posutlve environment in the school and the
impact this has on the behaviour and attitudes of pupils.
» The setting of clear routines and expectations for the behaviour of pupils across all aspects of school life,
not just in the classroom. .
« The focus on attendance and punctuallty for the school community
« If policies and procedures are applied consistently and fairly by all staff and a posmve and a respectful
school culture in which staff know and care about pupil is established.,
+ The schools’ full compliance with statutory duties to protect and safeguard pupils; ensuring bullying,
discrimination and peer-on-peer abuse — online or offline— are not accepted
. are dealt with quickly, consistently and effectively whenever they occur.

Personal development
This KPI seeks to evaluate: )
- The school's intent to provide for the personal development of all pupils by supporting pupils in building
their confidence and resilience so that they can keep themselves physically and mentally healthy.
« How schools prepare pupils for their adult lives; providing pupils with strategies and opportunltles which
help them to engage with society.
. The extent to which the school is developing and deepening pupils’ understandlng of the' fundamental
British values of democracy, individual liberty, the rule of law and mutual respect and tolerance.
+ The knowledge, and respect for different faiths, feelings and values that pupils aquire.
« The school’s delivery of the mandatory RSE curriculum.

The quality of the Leadership and management in AST schools
This KPI seeks to evaluate: :
+ The effectiveness of all leaders in focussing their attention on the educatlon provided by the school and as
a result delivering high outcomes for all pupils.
« If the continuing professional development for all staff develops their and skills so that they are able to
deliver effective teaching and support for all pupils.
« The extent to which leaders have engaged parents and carers in the school. ‘
.« Leaders ambition and capacity in ensuring sustained improvements to ‘achieve ‘outstanding’ Ofsted
judgement

-11-
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.

Subsrdlary company performance

From 1 September 2013 the Academy Trust began operating a wholly-owned subS|d|ary called Govinda's Limited.
The subsidiary was created to manage the kitchen operation at Avanti Schools and to ensure that the caterlng
operations are run in an efficient and cost-effective way. The subsidiary operates school kitchens at the majority of
Avanti Schools. The company has managed to turn a profit in the current year following a tough pandemic in the
prevrous year. R

From September 2017, the Academy- Trust began operating a wholly-owned subsrdlary called Avanti Services
Limited. The subsidiary was created to take over centralised and back-office functions for the Academy Trust and its
schools. Avanti Services L|m|ted continues to operate at a profit/break-even wuth any profits gifted to the parent
company. :

Going concern :

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Directors' has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regardmg the adoptlon of the
gomg concern basrs can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

MW

~ The trust has produced'a document called the Avanti Way. Thls Avanti Way seeks to drive the long term objectives

and decisions of trust. The below are the core principles from the Avanti Way and we aspire. for this to be reflected

in all aspects of engagement with our various stakeholders mcludrng pupils, and forms the basis for- how we judge

and promote our own success.

- Our Core Principles

« We are unique splntual beings with incredible potential, and we achieve our full potential by dlscovenng
and nurturing all parts of ourselves — intellectual, emotional physmal and spiritual.

« We choose how we wish to respond to life and what we nurtyre within us.

« We care for and respect aII life — human, animal and plant — and live in a way that causes the Ieast
possible harm.

» We each observe the one same reality from our own unique perspective and engage in open- mlnded
dialogue to deeply enrich our vision. .

- We serve a higher purpose by living a meaningful and satisfying life of contnbutlon

« We are nourished by personal relationships that fulfit our need to love and be loved, encouraglng us to be
the best we can be.
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Financial review

Financial report for the period

Most of the Academy Trust's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form
of recurrent grants, some of which is restricted.to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during
the year ended 31 August 2022 and the assomated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of
Financial Activities. .

The Academy Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA. In accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommendéd Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), such
grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted
fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual deprecnatlon charges over the expected useful life of the assets
concerned.

Dunng the year ended 31 August 2022, total expendlture of £35 703k (2021 £32,674k) was met by recurrent grant
funding from the ESFA together with other incoming resources. The surplus/(deficit) of income over expenditure for
the year (excluding restricted fixed asset funds, transfers to restricted fixed asset funds and actuarial losses on
defi ned benefit pension schemes) was £(1,580k) (2021: £197k) '

At 31 August 2022, the net book ‘value of fixed assets was £120 030k (2021: £88 363k) Movements in tanglble

fixed assets are shown in note 14 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing

education and the associated support services to the pupils of the Academy Trust:

The Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund, in which the Academy Trust participates, showed a surplus of
£36k at 31 August 2022 (2021: deficit of £896k). The London Borough of Harrow Scheme, in which the Academy
Trust participates, showed a surplus of £10k at 31 August 2022 (2021: deficit of £3,817k). The London Borough of -
Redbridge Pension Fund showed a deficit of £119k at 31 August 2022 (2021: £1,007k). The London Borough of
Croydon Pension showed a deficit of £5k at 31 August 2022 (2021: £124k). The Somerset County Council Pension
Fund, in which the Academy Trust participates, showed a deficit of £273k at 31 August 2022 (2021: £1,061k). The
Avon Pension .Fund, in which the Academy Trust participates, showed a deficit of £65k at 31 August 2022 (2021:
£266k). The Devon County Council Pension Fund, in which the Academy Trust participates, showed a deficit of
£323k at 31 August 2022 (2021: £1,318k). The Hertfordshire County Council Pension Fund, in which the Academy
Trust participates, showed a deficit of £4k at 31 August 2022 (2021: £nil). .

~ Reserves policy

" The Directors review the reserve levels of the Academy Trust annually. This réview encompasses the nature of
income and expenditure streams, the. need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The
Directors have determined that the appropriate level of free reserves should be equivalent to 2 (2021: 2) weeks’
expenditure, approximately £1, 373k (2021: £1, 257k (2 weeks)). - .

The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants
_and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance. The Academy Trust's .
current level of free reserves of £5,250k (2021: £5,868k) (total funds excluding pension reserve deficit less the
amount held in restricted fixed assets) is sufficient. The Academy Trust's free reserves mclude restricted general
funds of £2,512k (2021: £3,647k). °

Investment policy . '

. Under the Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Academy Trust has the power to invest funds not .
immediately required for its own purposes, in any way the Directors see fit. The organisation has a positive cash
balance to cover eventualities and unforeseen expenses. The banking facilities are reviewed on a regular basis.

Financial position ‘
" The Academy Trust held fund balances at 31 August 2022 of £126,111k (2021 £87 088k) comprising £123,373k

(2021: £84,867k) of restricted funds and £2,738k (2021: £2,221k) of unrestricted general funds. Of the restricted
funds, £121,603k (2021: £89,708k) is represented by tangible fixed assets.

" The Pension Reserve which is considered part of rgstrit:ted funds was £742k (2021: £8,488k) in deficit.
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AVANTI SCHOQLS TRUST

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Principal risks and uncertainties

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Directors have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in partlcular those relating to the
specific teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the individual Academies and their finances.
The Directors have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the school faces, especially in the non-
financial operational areas (including but not exclusive to teaching, safeguarding, health and ' safety,. data
protection, website compliance and staff wellbeing) and in relation to the control of finance. Directors have
introduced systems, including operational procedures and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk. The
Academy Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls. :

The risks to which Avantl Schools Trust is exposed reIate primarily to:
‘Change in government and legislation.
Potential of reduced funding and cash flow
Reduction in student numbers. .

The pnncupal rusks and uncertainties that Avanti Schools Trust faces are mltlgated by the risk management process
that the Academy Trust has in place. '

Fundraising :

The Academy Trust carries out a I|m|ted amount of fundraising, mindful of the communities within which it operates.
In circumstances when fundraising is undertaken there is no.obligation for any child/parent to donate. Récognised
standards are applied to ensure that fundralsmg is open honest and respectful, protectmg the public from undue
pressure to donate.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting .
Energy consumpt/on . o kWh

Aggregate of energy consumption in the year : . ’ 5,778,121
Emissions of CO2 equivalent , i ' v metric tonnes metri,c tonnes
Scope 1 - direct emissions . :
- Gas combustion . ) ' 694.36
. - Fuel consumed for owned transport : : . "2.56
_ £ 696.92
.Scope 2 - indirect emissions ) .. . ) _
- Electricity purchased : : ) o 511.55
Scope 3 other indirect emissions . . .
- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the Academy Trust o : 412
- Total gross emissions : , ' ' 1,212.59
Intensity ratio - : . . .
Tonnes CO2e per pupil ‘ ) 0.23

Quant/f cation and reporting methodology -
"We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reportlng Gurdehnes We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting. X
Intensity-measurement .

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions’in metric tonnes COZ equwalent per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

We have installed smart meters across all sites and mcreased video conferencing technology for staff meetings, to
reduce the need for travel between sites.-Solar panels have been installed at one of our schools.

Plans for future penods -
The Avanti Schools, Trust will be looking to ensure that the current schools within the family continue to increase

their standards and begin to embed the Avanti- Way. We welcomed our first non- denommatmnal presumptlon school
in Bishops Stortford and another to follow in September 2023. '

Auditor
Insofar as the Directors are aware:
« there is no relevant audit information of which the chantable company’s auditor is unaware
« the Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

To ensure that Avanti Schools Trust is obtaining best value, the Directors have decided to carry out a tender
process for the appointment of an Auditor for the financial year ending 31 August 2022 and succeeding years.

Diréctors report, incorporating a strategic report, appfoved by order of the board of trustees, as the company
directors, on 7 December 2022 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

N Gor M Younger
- Accounting Officer and Chief Executive Officer - . Chair




'AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

- Scope of responslblllty :
As Directors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Avanti- Schools Trust has an effective -
.system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute. assurance
against material misstatement or loss. :

The Board of Directors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance- with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Avanti
Schools Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible for reporting
to the-Board of Directors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. As Directors, we have
reviewed and taken account of the guidance in the DfE Academy Trust Handbook and competency framework for
" governance. The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Directors' Report
and in the Statement of Dlrectors Responsibilities.

Governance ‘
‘The Board of Directors has formally met 7 times during the year and also held a Directors- “Awayday” at which a
strategic overview of the direction of the Trust was taken. Including that meeting, attendance during the year at
meetings of the Board of Directors was as follows: ’

Directors i Meetings attended - Out of possible
N Gor (Accounting Officer and Chief Executuve Offi cer) 7 8
M Younger (Chair) 8 8
K Pau (Chair of Learning and Teaching Committee) 6 8
M Warrington (Chair of People, Compliance and Governance

Committee) . . 8 8
B Nanthabalan ‘ 5 8
A Read (Chair of Remuneration Committee) 8 8
S Ventress (Resigned 12 September 2022) 6 8
S Sahni ' 5 8
S Bassi (Chair of Audit and Risk Committee) 6 8
D Dhokia (Appointed 13 September 2021) 4 8
P Ganatra (Chair of Finance Commlttee) 7 8
A Gupta . 8 8
M Loughrey (Appointed 13 September 2021) 8 .8
P Popat (Appointed 13 'September 2021) 5 8

Other than the above appointments there have been no changes to the composntlon of the Board of Dlrectors
during the current academic year.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1

The Board of Directors normally meets five times each year (plus the annual “Awayday”) and is supported by five
Board Committees. Accordingly, Directors do not feel that they need to meet more frequently in order to discharge
their obligations because the governance structure provides an effective framework of robust ‘challenge and
interrogation. This is achieved through:

- the focus of Directors in ensuring clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction and holding Executive:
leaders to account for the educational performance of Trust schools and their pupils, performance
management of staff and ensuring effective financial performance;

« Trust Board Committees; and :

» the School Stakeholder Committees.

In our 2020 / 21 Statement we reported that the Trust Board was looking at next steps with a view to
commissioning an external governance specialist or organisation to undertake an independent governance review.
On reflection; Directors agreed that before commissioning the review, it would be appropriate to allow. the new -
Committee system properly to embed (the Audit and Risk and People, Compliance and Governance Committees
were introduced in that year). Directors also agreed that support for School Stakeholder Committees (SSCs) which

" has been reviewed and reinvigorated during the year and which are set to increase during 2022 / 23 from five to
twelve SSCs (reflecting the growth in the number of schools within the Trust) must be given the opportunity to
establish themselves. A further factor was that Directors felt that it was important to continue the on-going review of
the Trust Scheme of Delegation to ensure that this reflects good practice advice. Directors remain commltted to an
independent governance-review which they are almmg to commlssmn during 2023.

Directors regularly discuss strategic matters and organisational development as a group of dlrectore and with the
Executive Management Team. Examples of key developments undertaken by Directors through Board Committees
throughout the year, include:

. development of the of 2022 / 23 budget (approved by the Board in July 2022);

. appointment of independent internal auditors and development of an Internal Audit Programme which"
included GDPR compliance;

» development of procedures to support and i improve Cyber Security;

- review of staff terms and conditions to -ensure equity and fairness against the three arms of the Trust (i.e.
teaching staff, central support staff and Govindas);

» increased rigour of School Challenge Board meetings and subsequent reporting to the Learnmg, Teaching
and Standards Committee and ultimately to the Trust Board;

. The five Committees that support the Trust Board are:

Remuneration Committee — whose purpose is to recommend the wider pay policy of the Trust te the Trust

Board and to establish in accordance with ESFA directives the Ieadershlp pay policy. The Committee met on
three occasions during the year when there were present. .

Directors : ‘ Meetings attended Out of possible
Andrew Read (Chair of Remuneration Committee) ‘ 3 3,

Anjana Gupta ' 3 3

Bavaani Nanthabalan. 1 3

Molly Warrington -3 3

Mike Younger ' , : ~ 3 3
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| GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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Finance Committee - supports the Trust Board by reviewing and reporting to Directors on tne financial
performance of the Trust. There were three meetings during the year, attendance being:

Directors : .' . . Meetings attended Out of possible
.- S Sahni | D ' ' 1 L 3
P Ganatra (Chair of Fmance Commlttee) ' , R 3 . v 3

" AGupta . _ _ T : 3 3

The work of the Finance Committee this year has included: :
« Review of audited accounts for recommendation to the Trust Board
. Review of the management accounts
» 2022-23 budget preparation for recommendatlon to the Trust Board
« Oversight of GAG, Reserve pooling and the Reserves Plan, the capital strategy and financial regulations -
+ Review of Financial Controls

The new Audit and Risk Committee also met on three occasions during the year when there were present:

Directors o ’ o _ ‘ Meetings attended Out of possible
Sukwinder Bassi (Chair ofAudlt and R|sk Committee) o o 3 .3
Andrew Read . 2, o -3
Mike Younger ‘ Q A o 3 ' 3

In addition to keeping the Trust. Risk Register under regular review, this Committee maintains oversight of Trust
financial, governance and risk management and internal control systems, including health and safety, child
protection and safeguarding, providing assurance and reportmg fi ndlngs from internal audits to the Trust Board.
The work of the Committee this year has included: . .

« recommendation of the statutory accounts

« a review of Pupil Premium implementation,

. strategic oversight and scrutiny of the Internal Audit Plan;

« development of an updated risk reglster Risk Management Plan and Busnness Continuity Plan;

« Scrutiny of GDPR compliance; .

P development of a Cyber,Secunty Plan.

The Learning and Teaching Committee rewews and reports to the Trust Board on the educational performance

.of the Trust. The Committee held four meetings dunng the year when attendance was as foIIows
. X

Dlrectors T . | . ~_ Meetings attended' Out of possibIeA

Krutica-Pau (Chalr of Learning and Teachlng Commlttee)
Sukwinder Bassi '

Michelle Loughrey

-.Bavaani Nanthabalan

‘Salma Ventress

Mike Younger

SA S wWwww
F N N N N N
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) |
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The work of this Committee includes: N
« Regular review of the performance of each academy;
« Review of examination outcomes and projections
« Regular oversight of Safeguarding and Special Educational Needs provision
"« Review of central educational staffing structures

The new People, Compliance and Governance Cdmmittee has a wide remit. This includes advis’ing‘ the Trust
Board on matters related to employment, data protection and freedom of information, oversight and review, of the
Scheme of Delegation, scrutiny and oversight of many Trust polumes and oversight of employment matters and of
compllance ]

. \
Attendance at the four meetings during the year was as follows:

Directors : " Meetings attended Out of possible
Molly Warrington (Chair of People, Compliance and Governance - 4 S 4
Committee ) ‘ - ‘

Dipa Dhokia ‘ - . 3 ' 4
Praful Ganatra ‘ ' o 3 4
Mike Younger . o - 4 o 4

Review of value for money , '
As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
~ educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. The Accounting
Officer considers how the Academy Trust uses its resources and how it has provided good value for money during
each academic year and reports to the Board of Directors where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered
improved value for money during theé year by securing the following:

« Review of staffing structure of senior leadership team

-« Creation of new post of Governance Officer
. Continued drive for procurement rationalisation.
- Benchmarking summary for each academy

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure. to achieve polucues aims and objectives; it can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-gomg process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Academy Trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of ‘those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Avanti Schools Trust for the period
1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

TheBoard of Directors has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust ‘is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Directors is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks, which have been in place during the financial year and up to the date of approval
of the annual report and fi nancial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors.
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The risk and control framework ' -
The Academy Trust's system of internal_financial control is based on a framework. of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes: . ’
. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and perlodlc financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Directors and/or relevant Trust Board Committees;
. regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against forecast
and of major purchasing plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
. setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) gurdelmes
. review and monitoring of the main risks reflected in the risk register which mcludes
. Safeguarding
.~ Maintaining academic standards
. Managing growth .-
. Cyber Security and GDPR Polltlcal change
. Financial management
. Governance
. Effective leadership .
. Health and Safety

The Board-of Directors has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has appointed AIMS and
“ Juniper as internal auditors who now support the meeting requirements of the Audit and Risk Committee. The role

of the internal auditor includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on Academy
Trust financial and other systems. The checks carried out during the year include:

«» GDPR

» Payroll

« Financial Controls

- Budgeting

Review of effectiveness :
As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of .
internal control. During the year in question, the review has been informed by:
« the work of the internal auditor; .
« the work of the external auditor; '
« the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework. .

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit and Risk Committee and a’plan to address any |dent|f ed weaknesses and ensure continuous
|mprovement of the system is in place. .

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Directors on 7 December 2022.

e ke o

’

N Gor ' M Younger :
Accounting Officer and Chief Executive Chair
Officer
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Directors (who act as trustees for charitable activities of Avanti Schools Trust and are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the
financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
and apphcable law and regulations. . )

Company law requires the Directors to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the Directors
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of

" the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and

expendlture for that penod

In preparlng these accounts, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; . '

. observe the methods and principles in the Chantles SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2021 to 2022;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

. disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

- prepare the accounts on the-going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable

company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for-the prevention and detectton of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation, the charitable company applies
financial and other .controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
- management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable companys website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
. dissemination of financial statements may dlffer from legislation in other 1unsdnctlons

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Dlrectors on 7 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

7/

N Gor ‘ - M Younger
Accounting Officer and Chief Executive Officer "Chair
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

As Accountlng Officer of Avanti Schools Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board
of Directors and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding agreement in
place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due regard to the requirements of the Acaderny Trust Handbook 2021. .

I confirm that the Academy Trust Board of Directors and | are able to identify any material irregular or improper use
of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of fundlng under the
Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that no lnstances of material irregularity, |mpropr|ety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notlf ed to the Board of Dlrectors
and ESFA.

o

Accounting Officer
7 December 2022
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AVANTI SCHOOLS
TRUST

FOR THE »YE‘AR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Opinion : ]
We have aud|ted the accounts of Avanti Schools Trust (the 'parent Academy Trust') and its subsudlary companies
(the 'group’) for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the accounts, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting. Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the
Charities SORP and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skllls Funding .
Agency.

In our opinion the accounts: :

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August
2022 and of the group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its lncome and
expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2021 to 2022.

1

Basis for.opinion :
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audltlng (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
- the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
~ our other ethieal responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern ‘
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. .

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements a‘re authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are descnbed in the
relevant sectlons of this report.

" Other information . :

The Directors are responsible for the other information: The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the accounts and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the accounts does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise expllcnly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclu3|on thereon.

In ¢onnection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in the
audit -or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the accounts or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

)

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO'THE MEMBERS OF AVANTI SCHOOLS -
TRUST (CONTINUED) .

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUS T 2022

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:

- the information given in the Directors' Report including the mcorporated strategic report for the ﬁnancral year
“for which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

e the. Directors' Report including the mcorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance- with

appllcable Iegal requurements

‘ Matters on which we are required to report by exception :

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent Academy Trust and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified matenal misstatements in the Directors' Report, including
the mcorporated strategic report :

We have nothing to report in respect of the foIIowmg matters in relation to whlch the Companres Act 2006 requrres
. us to report to you if, in our opinion:
- adequate accounting records ‘have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recelved
- from branches not visited by us; or
- the parent Academy Trust's accounts are not in agreement wrth the accounting records and returns; or
- ‘certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by faw are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Dlrectors Responsrbllltles the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as’
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparatlon of accounts that are free from material mlsstatement

whether due to fraud or error. . ' :

In preparing the accounts, the Directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent Academy Trust’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent Academy
Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 0. .

Auditor's responS|b|I|tles for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance-about whether the accounts as a whole are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are -
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts. :

. Irregularities, including fraud, are rnstances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detectmg irregularities, including fraud is detalled below.

A further description of our responsibilities.for the audit of the fi nancnal statements is Iocated on the Fmancral
Reporting Council's website at wwwfrc org. uk/audltorsresponsubrlltles This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AVANTI SCHOOLS
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above and on-the Financial Reportlng Council's website, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. . :

We obtain and update our understanding of the entity, its activities, its control enwronment and likely future
developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory framework applicable and how the entity is complying
with that framework. Based on this understanding, we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide. a basis for our opinion. This includes
consideration of the risk’of acts by the entity that were contrary to applicable Iaws and regulations including fraud.

~

In response to the risk of megulantues and non- compllance with Iaws and regulatnons mcludmg fraud, we designed
procedures which included: "

« Enquiry of senior leadershlp, Directors and those charged with governance around actual ‘and potential ’
litigation and claims as well as actual, suspected and alleged fraud;

« Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

« Assessing the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations considered to have a direct material
effect on the financial statements or the operations of the company through enquiry and inspection;

« Reviewing financialstatement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including compliance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency;

. Performing audit work over the recognition of grant income and the aIIocatlon of expenditure to funds;

« Performing audit work over the risk of management bias and override of controls, including testing of
journal entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the rationale of significant .
transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for indicators of
potential bias.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those

leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk

increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and’transactions reflected .

in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk of

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contrel.
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Use of our report )

This report is made solely to the parent Academy Trust's members, as a body; in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent Academy
Trust's members those’ matters we are required to state to them in-an-auditors' report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the parent
Academy Trust and the parent Academy Trust's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

AZ{(‘S M{’ Sanvices

David Cary LLB.FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Azets Audit Services o 15 December 2022

- Chartered Accountants , : ) A
Statutory Auditor o - . , Suites B & D
Burnham Yard
Beaconsfield
* Bucks
HPS 2JH
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS -
'FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

_In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 6 October 2021 and further to the requirements of the
Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Avanti Schools Trust during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Avanti Schools Trust and ESFA in'accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Avanti Schools Trust and ESFA those matters we are
- required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than Avantl Schools Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have formed.

~ Respective responsibilities of Avanti Schools Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

- The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Academy’s funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 9 August 2012 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes mtended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of

_the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether, in our opinion, anything has come to our
attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income
received during the year 1-September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes mtended by
Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement.in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. -

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Trust's income and expenditure.

-

.Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the controls, policies
~ and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of authorities including: high

level financial control areas and areas assessed of presenting a higher risk of impropriety. We undertook detailed
testing, based on our assessment of risk of material irregularity, where such controls, policies and procedures apply
to .classes of transactions. This work was integrated with our audit on, the financial statements to the extent
evidence from the conduct of that audit supports the regularity conclusion as well as additional testing based on our
assessment of risk of materlal |rregular|ty :
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t

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
_expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities WhICh
govern them. :

Reporting Accountant
Azets Audit Services
SuitesB & D

Burnham Yard
'Beaconsfield

o Bucks

HP9 2JH

/
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Unrestricted Restricted funds: ' Total " Total
funds  General Fixed asset 2022 2021
" as restated

, Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 , 22 - 33,855 33,877 2,852
Charitable activities: .
- Funding-for educational operations 4 - . 30,719 ‘ - 30,719 28,692
Other trading activities ‘ 5 494 - 33 - 527 367
Investments : 6 1 - : - 1 1
Total , : , 517 36,752 33,855 65,124 31,912
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities: : .
- Educational operations 9 - 32,849 2,854 35,703 32,674
Total 7 - 32,849 2,854 35,703 V - 32,674
Net income/(expenditure) o . 517 (2,097) 31,001 29,421 (762) ¢
Transfers between funds | 22 - (894) T 894 - -
Other recognised gains/(lossés)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined . -
benefit pension schemes 24 .- 9,602 - 9,602 " (1,918)
Net movement in funds - o ) ' 517 6,611 31 ,895 39,023 (2,680)
Reconciliation of funds ‘ ) _ : :
Total funds brought forward B ' 2,221 . (4,841)° 89,708 87,088 89,768

87,088

Total funds carried forward E - 2,738

1,770 121,603

126,111
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Comparative year information
Year ended 31 August 2021
As restated

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants -
-Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations
. Other trading activities

Investments

Total
Expénditure on:
Charitable activities:

- Educational operations

Total

Net incomel(é)ipenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other .'recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pensmn
‘schemes

. Net movement in funds

“Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward .

' Notes

(3, -3

22

24

Unrestricted .

Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
392 - 2,460 2,852
- _ 28,692 - 28,692
344 23 - 367
1 - - 1
© 737 28,715 2,460 . 31,912
- 29,255 3,419 32,674
S 20255 3419 - 32674
737 (540)  (959) (762)
; (104) 104 ;
- (1,918) - (1!918)

737 (2,562) (855)  .(2,680)
'-1 ,484. .(2,279) 90,563 89,768
2,221 89,708 87,088

(4.841)
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

: ACONSOLIDAT'ED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022
2022 . 2021 .
’ : . ’ - : as restated
Notes © £000 £000 £000 - £000 -
Fixed assets . ‘ - '
Tangible assets - , 14 120,030 : © 88,363
Current assets : _ : ‘ 4 '
Stocks - _ N 17 - 36 ~ ' ‘ 20
Debtors - - - 18 ) 1,425 1,511
Cash at bank and in hand - : . 11,627 - 12,316
. 13,088 o . 13,847
_Current liabilities :
Creditors: amounts falling due within one . o .
year _ . 19 (5,447) ’ . (5,440)
Net current assets ‘ ‘ h . 7,641 8,407
Total assets less current liabilities . 127,671 . 96,770
~ Creditors: amounts falling due after more . - _
than one year ) 21 : (818) (1,194)
Net assets before defined benefit pension . E
scheme liability . 126,853. © 95576
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24 . (742) 4 ) (8,488)
Total net assets - . : 126,111 g 87,088
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds 22 ) ‘ , NV
- Fixed asset funds . : 121,603 89,708
- Restricted income funds ' ‘ o 2,512 3,647
- Pénsion reserve ‘ A _ (742) ‘ (8,488)
Total restricted funds ) . . 123,373 - 84,867
" ‘Unrestricted income funds 22 . 2738 L 2,221
Total funds ' . 126,111 ~ 87,088

N Gor. - M Younger
Accounting Officer and Chief Executive Officer  Chair ‘ ' : ‘ )
N ‘ Company Number 07506598
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022
20220 © 2021
. as restated
. Notes - £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed assets S ' '
Tangible assets ' 14 ' © 120,022 - 88,363
Current assets - .
Stocks : ' o 17 1 , 1
Debtors = . } 18 - 1,558 . 1,468
* Cash atbank and in hand , o 11,286 ) 12,015
12,845 = ' 13,484
Current liabilities o o
Creditprs: amounts falling due within one year 19 (5,615) ‘_ i (5,376)
Net current assets ' ' 7,230 : , 8,108
: Totai assets less current Iiabiliti_es ‘ ‘ : 127,252 96,471
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than . :
one year . . 21 ; (786) - (1,152) -
Net'aséets before defined benefit pension scheme
liability ' 126,466 .. 95,319
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24 (742) (8,488)
Total net assets ' S 125,724 ' 86,831
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds . 22
- Fixed asset funds . : © 121,603 89,708
- Restricted income funds ‘ . L 2,125 ) 3,390
- Pension reserve o (742) (8,488)
Total restricted funds 122,986 ‘ 84,610
© Unrestricted income funds 22 2,738 2,221
Total funds | : o 125,724 - 86,831

The accounts on pages 29 to 66 were approved by the Directors and authorised for-issue on-.7.December 2022
and, are signed on their behalf by: "

Gor . "M Younger’ ‘
Accounting Officer and Chief Executive Officer Chair
: Company Number 07506598
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Notes
. Cash flows from qperatirig' activities,
" Net cash (used in)/provided by operating
activities _ ) 25

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group )
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

. Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities -
. Receipt/(repayment) of other loan

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decréase)lincrease in cash and cash
- equivalents in the reporting period .

Cash and cash equivalents'at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2022

£000

1,111
(981)

6)

£000

(815)

131 -

®)

(689) .

12,316

11,627

2021
as restated
£000

2,460
(146)

£000

1,493

2,315

3,808 -

8,508

12,316
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AVANTI SCHOOLS TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUS T 2022

1.1

1.2

1.3

" Grants

~ Accounting policies '

Avanti Schools Trust is a chantable company. The address of its prlnCIpaI ‘place of busmess is given on page
1 and the ‘nature of |ts operations are set out in the Directors' report

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consnstently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set outbelow. - |,

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the Academy Trust, which is a publlc benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Aventi Schools Trust meets the definition of a public‘ benefit entity under FRS 102.

The financial statements are presented in sterling (£), which is also the functional currency for the Academy
Trust and consolidate the financial statements of the Academy Trust and its subsidiary companies. The
Academy Trust has taken advantage of the exemption in Section 408 Companies Act 2006 not to present its
own Statement of Financial Activities.

Going concern

The Directors assess whether the use of going concern is appropnate i.e. whether there are any materlal
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The Directors make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year
from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no
material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparlng the financial statements.

Income ' B
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entltlement to the funds, the recelpt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

N

Grants, where ‘conditions have been met to establish entttlement are included in the statement of financial
activities on a receivable basis. Where grants are received but conditions ‘establishing entitlement have not

. been met, these are deferred. The balance of income receivable for specifi C purposes but not expended

during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any unspent amount is reflected as a balance in the restricted general fund. '

Capital grants are recognised when receivable and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they

are expended. Unspent amounts of the capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset
fund. :

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts

- of -capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are

recognised when there is entittement.and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are

_expended.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 . |

1.4

Accounting policies - ' ' . . (Continued)

Donations .
Donations are included in the statement of financial activities on a cash received basis or on an accruals basis
where they are assured with reasonable certainty and are receivable at the balance sheet date.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period lt is recelvable and to the extent the ~ -

Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated qoods. facilities and services ‘

The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the Trust is recognised in'the statement of financial
activities as incoming resources and resources expended at their estimated value to the Trust in the year |n
which they are recelvable and where the benefit is both quantifiable and material.

Where it has been ascertained that the risks and rewards of property subject to long lease agreements lie
substantially with the Trust, a reasonable estimate of the gross value is included within fixed assets and, with
an appropriate credit to voluntary income (gift in kind), within the restricted fixed asset fund. The valuation is at

" an estimation of depreciated replacement cost on the basis that the assets represent spemalused property and

the open.market value for existing use is not readlly available.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's accountlng policies.

Interest receivable ‘
Interest receivable is included within the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis.

Expenditure ' ~ ,
All expenditure is recognised in the year in which a liability is incurred and has been classified under headings

- that aggregate all costs related to that category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular

headings they have been allocated on a basis consistent with the use of resources, with central staff costs
allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.
Other support costs are allocated based on the spread of staff costs. All resources expended are inclusive of
irrecoverable VAT .
Charitable actlvmes

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, -including support costs and costs
relatmg to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Governance costs : .
Governance costs include the costs attributable to the Trust's compliance and constitutional and statutory
requirements, including audit, strategic management and Board of Directors’ meetings and reimbursed
expenses. Such costs include both direct and allocated support costs.

Allocation of costs

In accordance with the Charities SORP, expendlture has been analysed between the cost of generating funds,
the Academy Trust's charitable activities and governance. Items of expenditure which involve more than one
cost category have been apportioned on a reasonable, justifiable and consistent basis for the cost category
concerned. Central staff costs and depreC|at|on are directly attributable to the one. principal activity of the

: Academy Trust.
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1.5

. 1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies ' : ' NN ‘ (Continued) .

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets acquired since the Trust was establlshed are mcluded in the accounts at cost. Assets
costing less than £5,000 are written off in the year of acquisition. All other assets are capitalised.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the Government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund (in the Statement of
Financial Activities and carried forward in the balance sheet). The depreciation on such assets is charged to
the restricted fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. :

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write them

down to their estimated residual values on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Land & buildings . 0.8% & 2% (Building Improvements 6.67%)
Assets under construction } . il : ' :
Plant & machinery - - 10%

_ICT - 33.3%
Fixtures, fittings & equupment -+ 20%
Motor vehicles : . 20% -

'

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged untll
they are brought. |nto use. :

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that.the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets

"and their recoverable amounts are recognised as - |mpa|rments Impalrment losses are recognised in the

statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there’is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement

‘can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will

pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
provide. : .

-Leased assets . _
. Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership remain

with the lessor are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line basis over the lease tefm.

Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as def ned in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

- Financial assets

Trade and other debtors are basic ﬁnancual mstruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial |nstruments Amounts due by the charity's wholly -owned subsidiaries.are held
at face value less any |mpa|rment

Cash at bank is classified as a basic f nancual instrument and is measured at face value.
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1.9

1.10

‘Accounting policies A ' : ' {Continued)

Financial liabilities :
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are' measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a fi nancral liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obhgatron to deliver services rather than cash or another fi nancral instrument.

Stock e . :
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realrsable value. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
price less further costs to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving stock.

Taxation

.The Academy Trust is consrdered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010

and, therefore, meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by Part 11, Chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
‘Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or garns are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes. ' .

Pensions benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers Pension Scheme (TPS)

- and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost'is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in Note 21,
the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is, therefore, treated as a defined contribuition scheme for accountrng purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust in

) separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are

142

measured On an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The -
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the
net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the
benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on
the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. .

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting .
General funds represent those résources. which may be used towards meetlng any of the objects of the

" Academy Trust at the discretion of the Directors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources that are applied to specific capital purposes |mposed by the ESFA
and DfE where the asset acqurred or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the ESFA and DfE.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 -

2 . Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and jﬁdgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expéctations of -future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. . '

 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concernlng the future The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and’
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets'
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below :

’

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assuriptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, .
which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrymg
amount of the pension liability.

_Critical areas of judgement _

The Directors consider that the only area of judgement that is critical to the Academy Trust's financial
statements is the freehold property valuation, which was determined by the ESFA on conversion to Academy -
Trust status. :

3 Donations and capital grants

- Unrestricted  Restricted Total .  Total

funds - funds 2022 . 2021

£000 _ £000 © £000 £000

Donated fixed assets - : - : - " 32,744 T 32,744 -
Capital grants ‘ A . - 1,111 S 1,11 2,460
Other donations . 22 - 22 392
22 33,855 33,677 2,852
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4

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total "~ Total
funds funds 2022 2021
. £000 £000 .. £000 £000
DfE / ESFA grants ’ ‘ ‘ ‘ '
General annual grant (GAG) sl 124,699 - 24,699 23,006
Other DfE / ESFA grants: . ,
UIFSM . | - - 487 487 - 458
Pupil premium - . 519 519 486
Start up grants - 358 358 359
Teachers pension grants - 70 .. ' 70 © 768
Teachers pay grants - 25 25 237
PE and sports premlum ’ - 173 . 173 147
Rates - 290 290 225
Others . ’ - ~1,282 1,282 678
- 127,903 27,903 26,364
Other government grants
Local authority SEND funding - 1,115 1,115 771
Local authority nursery funding - 228 228 219
.- 1,343 1,343 990
Exceptional government funding
. Coronavirus job retention scheme grant - - - 119
Other Coronavirus funding - - - 375
- - - 494 ._
Other incoming resources - 1,473 1,473 844
Total funding -

-30,719 30,719 28,692

The trust has been elilgible to claim additional funding in yéar from government support schemes in response

‘to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received-is shown above under “exceptional government funding”.

« In the prior year, the trust furloughed some of its staff under the government's CJRS. The funding
received of £nil(2021: £129k) relates to staff costs in respect of multiple staff which are included
within note 11 below as appropriate.

« Included within other coronavirus funding above is mass testmg funding of £nil (2021: £105k)

« Included within other coronavirus funding above is coronavirus (COVID 19) catch-up premlum of
£nil(2021: £270k).
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!

5 ther tradi:ng activities

Other income

Investment income.

Short term deposits

Expenditure

Academy's -éducational operations

- Direct costs :
- Allocated support costs

Unrestricted
funds
£000

494

Unrestricted

¥ Restricted
funds

£000

33

Restricted

Non-pay expenditure

Staff costs Premises
£000 £000
17,225 .
8,247 '5,822

' 25472 5822

Net incomel/(expenditure) for the year includes:

’

Fees payable to auditor for audit services

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Net interest on defined benefit pension liability

f

* GCentral.services .

Other

£000

1,968
2,441

4409

Total Total

2022 2021

£000 "£000

527 - 367

2022 2021
£000 £000
1 1
Total ~Toital
2022 2021
~ as restated
£000 £000
19,193 17,315
16,510 15,359
35,703 32,674
2022 2021
as restated
£000 £000
46 42
321 - 454
2,058 1,487 -
151 ' .96

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year;

- Major capital projects support

- Financial services

- Educational support services

- Others as arising .
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8  Central services

The émounts charged during the year were as follows:

Avanti House Secondary School
Krishna Avanti Primary School (Croydon)
Krishna Avanti Primary School (Leicester)
Avanti Court Primary School .
Krishna Avanti Primary School (Harrow)
Avanti House Primary School
Avanti Fields School

. Avanti Gardens School

. Avanti Hall School
Avanti Park School
Avanti Meadows School
Krishna Avanti Primary School (3)
Krishna Avanti Primary School (1)
Krishna Avanti Primary School (2)

9 Charitable activities

« Al from restricted funds:
Direct costs
Educational operations

Support costs
Educational operations

Analysis of costs

Direct costs

Teaching and educational support staff costs
Staff development

Educational supplies and services
Examination fees '

Educational consultancy
'Other direct costs

17,225

2022
£000

675
115
172
269
242

225 7

388
65
159

131 .
43 -

2,484

2022
-£000

19,193

16,510

35,703

2022
£000
181
962

115

- 536

19,193

(Continued)

2021
(£000

542

239
183
217
131
- 152
151

94
158
1203 -

2,070

2021
as restated
..£000

17,315

. 15,359

32,674

. 2021
as restated
£000

15,894
137
732
121°
209
222 -

17,315
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9  Charitable activities

Support costs

Support staff costs

Depreciation

Technology.costs

Recruitment and support

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning s
Energy costs .
Rent, rates and other occupancy costs
Insurance

Security and transport

Catering
_Finance costs

" Other support costs
Governance costs

10. Governance costs
All from restricted funds:
‘Amounts included in support costs

~ Auditor's remuneration
- Audit of financial statements

8,247
2,058

- 514

198 -

1,594
694
693
660
104

65
648
151
847

16,510

Total
2022
£000

37

(Continued)

6,456
1,487
503
91
2,786
624
351
77

98 -
220

517
96
1,379
34

15,359

Total

- 2021 ¢

£000
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11 Staff

Staff costs B : . ' v
" Staff costs during the year were:
2022 T 2021
"£000 £000
Wages and salaries ' ‘ ) N . 17,447 - 15,439
Social'security costs _ o ) - . 1684 1,474
Pension costs - - ' ' . 4,812 3,934
Apprenticehsip levy ) ) 58 - 58
Sfaff costs - employees . _ . 24,001 20,905 .
Agency staff costs . s . 1459 . 1,200
Staff restructuring costs , : ’ A .12 . 245 .
E ; : _ 25,472 22,350
Staff development and other staff costs - : : 181 137
Total staff expenditure o ' 25,653 22,487
Staff restructuring costs comp'rise:
Redundancy payments ' . . ' ' 12 245

The academy trust paid 2 (2021: 9) severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bands:

£0 - £25,000
£25,000 - £50,000

N
-

Non statutorylnon-contractual staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totallmg £12k
(2021: £106Kk). Individually, the payments were: £10k; and £2k.

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2022 . 2021

Number Number

Teachers | : ' | 317 278

~ Administration and support : ' . 408 328
" Management . ‘ h . ‘ -3 4
, o | 3 128 7 e10
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1",

Staff , _ : o : (Continued)

Higher pald staff

‘The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pensnon costs) exceeded £60, 000

was: .
' ~ 2022 2021
" Number Number
£60,000 - £70,000 A o 14 13
£70,001 - £80,000 : . : 3
£80,001 - £90,000 ‘ 1 2
_ £100,001 - £110,000 3 3
£110,001 - £120,000 ‘ oo 2 2
£120,001-£130,000 ' : S -1
£140,001 - £150,000 ' : - S Ty

~£160,001 - £170,000 - o

L—

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Dlrectors and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personhel employee benefits (including
employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) recelved by key management
personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £518k (2021: £633k).
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13

Directors’ rerﬁuneration and expenses '
One or more Directors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from emponrﬁent with the
- Academy Trust. The staff Directors and Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide
undertaking the roles of staff-members under their contracts_ of employment. Other Directors did not receive
any payments, other than expenses, from the Academy Trust in respect of their role as Directors. During the
year, travel and subS|stence payments totalhng £1,080 (2021: £nil) were relmbursed to five (2021: nil)
Directors.
The one (2021: one) staff Directors who received remuneration was:
Name ‘ . 2022 2021 -
N. Gor U 7 :
Gross salary : £160,001 - £ 165,000 £155,001 - £160,000
Employer's National Insurance £ 15,001 - £ 20,000 £ 15,001 - £ 20,000

Employer's pension contributions £ 25,001 -£ 30,000 £ 25,001 -£ 30,000

Other related party transactions involving the Directors are set out within the related parties note.

,Directors' and officers' insurance . . .

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possuble to quantify the trustees and officers
mdemmty element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme
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14 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets - Group
. ‘As restated .

- Land & Assets  Plant& ICT  Fixtures, " Motor Total
buildings under ‘machinery . fittings & vehicles
construct’'n i equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost ' ‘
At 1
September _ ) ,
2021 - 93,425 " 63 382 .168 139 59. 94,226
Transfer on . i : )
‘completion 30 (30) - - - - -
Additi9ns 32,744 916 - - 65 - 33,725
At 31 August ' : . _
2022 126,199 939 382 168 - 204 59. 127,951
Depreciation -
At 1
September ) ‘ '
2021 . 5,452 - 141 155 81 34 5,863
Charge for . ' ' :
the year - 1,976 - 38 6 27 } 11 2,058
. .
. At 31 August .
2022. 4 7,428 - 179 161 108 45 7,921
Net book value
At 31 August . '
2022 118,771 . 939 203 7 .96 . 14 120,030 -
At 31 August
2021 87,973 .53 241 - - 13 . 58 25 . 88,363

Land and buildings above include land at the value of £34,171k (2021: £26,958k). Freehold" land is not
depreciated within the financial statements. ' ) ‘ ‘

‘
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14  Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets - Company . =

As restated /

Land & Assets A

Plant &
buildings under machinery
construct'n
-£000 £000 . £000 -
Cost , '
. At 1 September
2021 93,425 53 382
Transfer on ' ‘ :
completion : 30 (30) -
Additions . 32,744 - 916 -
At 31 August - . - .
2022 . 126,199 939 382
Depreciation
At 1 September .
2021 o 5,452 - 141
Charge for the '
year . 1,976 - 38
At 31 August _
2022 7,428 - 179
" Net book value -
. At31August -
2022 . 118,771 939 203
~ At 31 August A '
2021 - 87,973 53 241

\

ICT

£000 .

168

168

155

>

161 ~

Al w ~N

Fixtures,
fittings &
" equipment
£000

139

56

195

81

26

107

88

(o]

Land and buildings above include -land at the value of £34,171k (2021: £26,958k).

depreciated within the financial statements.

(Continued)

Motor
vehicles

£000

52

52

27

1

38

o a

Total
£000
94,219
3&7jé :
127,935
5,856
2,057

7,913

120,022

88,363

Freehold land is not
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14 Tangible fixed assets ' o ' . ) (Continued)

15

The net book value of land and buildings compri'seS:

" Historical cost:

At 31 August 2021

Tangible fixed assets - Group énd_Comnany

, - 2022 2021

: as restated .

. £000 - £000

" Freeholds ' S . 28571 28916
Long leaseholds (over 50 years) . . - ’ . .83,021 - 51,716
Short leaseholds (under 50 years) - ’ 7179 7,341
18,771 . 87,973

Security held by the Secretary of State for Education
Group and Company

Legal charges dated 30 March 2012, 18 February 2015 and three dated 31 October 2019 are held by The A
Secretary of State for Educatlon giving him/her a fixed charge over land and bundmgs at the foIIowmg

.. St. Paul's Roman Catholic-School, Spencefield Lane, Lelcester

« The west side of Spencefield Lane, Leicester, LE5 6HN known as Evington Hall, Spencef eld Lane ‘
Leicester, LE5 6HN. _

« Victoria Hospital, Park Road, Frome, land on the west side of Vlctona Hospital, Park Road, Frome
(BA11 1EY), 69 Weymouth Road, Frome (BA11 1HJ), land lying to. the west of Park Road, Frome,
land lying on the north side of Park Road, Frome and Victoria Hospltal Park Road, Frome. '

« Thomas Hall, Lower Argyll Road, Exeter, EX4 4RG.

« Land at CoIIege of St Matthias, Oldbury Court Road, Bristol.

" The charges were reg|stered with Compames House on 17 April 2012, 9 March 2015 two on 4 November '
- 2019 and 5 November 2019 - :

Fixed ésset investments

At 31 August 2022

| g
- -
] [ =

The investment in group undertakings relates.to the cost of:

« the 1 ordinary share of £1. (2021: 1 ordinary share of £1), being 100% of the issued share capital of
Govinda's Limited, -a company mcorporated in England and Wales, whlch is a tradlng subS|d|ary of .
the chantable company.

« the 100 ordinary shares of £1 (2021: 100 ordinary shares of £1), bemg 100% of the ‘issued share. R
capital of Avanti Services Limited, a company mcorporated in England and Wales; which is a tradlng
subsudlary of the charitable company. - ,
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15

16

17

Fixed asset investments ' ' ' ) ' (Continued)

- Holdings of more than 20%

The company holds more than 20% of the 'share capital of the followmg companies:

zCompany ' Cou‘ntry of registration or ‘ Shares held

f incorporation ) ’

, . ~ Class o %
Subsidiary undertakings : _ : '
Avanti Services Limited UK ' Ordinary 100 - -

Govinda's Limited : UK Ordinary ' ’ 100

The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the results of these undertakmgs for the'last
relevant financial year were as follows: . .

Capital and Profit/(loss) for the year -

. reserves
Principal activities - ) £000 £000
Avanti Services Limited ~ School services 377 376
Govinda's Limited School catering - s 24
Financial instruments N o R
’ Company Company ., Group . . Group:
2022 - 2021 . 2022 2021
£000 £000 » £000. - £000
Carrying amount of financial assets . - _ .
- Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 777 " 493 634 - 536
Carrying amount of financial liabilities o . . :
- Measured at amortised cost ‘ . (4,199) (3,940) - (3,959) (3,789)
Stocks . ‘ . S o -
. Company Company Group . Group
2022 . 2021 ‘ 2022 2021
£000 £000 - - £000 : £000
Catering stock 1 1 36 20

i . _ — p———] —]
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18 Debtors ' ' ' ' ' ) -

Company Company Group " Group

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000- . £000 -

Trade debtors . Y 81 140 88
Other debtors . 693 432, 494 448
Prepayments and accrued income. 781 975 791 . 975
1,558 1,468 1425 1,511

19  Creditors: amounts falling due within one yeér o :
' : Company Company Group Group

b ' | 2022 2021 2022 2021
' ' £000 £000 £000 £000
Other loans o : - - 13 | 8
Trade creditors - A 949 891 664 722
- Other taxation and social security S 376 199 435 406 -
Other creditors - ' 1,258 . 943 : 1,289 | 965
Accruals and deferred income : 3,032 - 3,343 3,046 3,339
‘5,615 . 5,376 5,447 5,440
20 Deferred income - Group and Cthany : .
- ' 2022 2021
£000° £000
Deferred income is included within:- _ .
Creditors due within one year* - C : 1,040 - . 1,237
‘Deferred income at 1 September 2021 Lo : ) . . 1,237 - 1,033
- Released from previous years _ ‘ o - (1,237) (1,033)
Resources deferred in the year C 1,040 1,237
Deferred income at 31 August 2022 o 1,040 ' 1,237

Income received during the year specific to funding for future periods has been deferred accordingly. As at the
balance sheet date the Academy Trust.was holding funds received in advance for the year 2022/23 relating to
Infant Free School Meals, educational trips, rates relief, catering and other revenue grants. :

,
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21 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
: Company

Other loans
- Other creditors

Analysis of loans

Wholly rebayable within five years
-Less: included in current liabilities

Amounts included above

Loan maturity

Due in more than one year but not more than
two years

Due in more than two years but not more than
five years

2022

- £000

786

786

Company

2022
£000

L

Company

2021
£000

1,162

1,152

’ Cor;lpan'y
2021 -
£000

Group
2022
£000

32
786

818

Group
2022

£000

‘45
(13)

Group
2021
£000

42
1,162

1,194
Group

2021
£000
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22

Funds

Funds - Group

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) -
Start up grants

UIFSM

Pupil premium .

Teachers pension grants
Teachers pay grants

PE and sports premium
Rates

- Other DfE / ESFA grants

Other government grants -
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants
General fixed assets

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance at
" 1 September
2021 Income Expenditure
as restated o : '
~ £000 £000 £000
3,647 24,699 (24,940)
- 358 (358)
. 487 (487)
- 519 (519)
- 70 (70)
- 25 (25)
- 173 (173)
- 290 (290)
- 1,282 (1,282)
- 1,343 (1,343)
.. 1,506 (1,506)
(8,488) - (1,856)
(4,841) 30,752 (32,849)"
1,345 1,11 (1,509)
. 88,363 32,744 . (1,345)
89,708 33,855 (2,854)
84,867 64,607 (35,703)
2,221 517 -
87,088 65,124 . _(35,?03)

Gains,
losses and
transfers

£000

‘L (894)

.626
268

89

H

9,602

9,602

. Balance at
31 August
2022

£000

2,512
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22 Funds _ : ' : (Continued)
The specific purposes. for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General funds represent. those resources which may be used towards meetmg any. of the objects of the
Academy Trust at the discretion of the Directors.

Restncted fi xed asset funds are resources that are to be applied to specific capltal purposes |mposed by the
* ESFA and DfE where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose

Restncted funds comprlse all other restricted funds received and include grants from the ESFA and DfE.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of Sfate, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2022, '
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22 Funds

Funds - Group

Comparative information in‘respect of the preceding period is as follows:

As restated
Balance at
1 September
2020
i £000

Restricted general funds o
General Annual Grant (GAG) . 3,124
Start up grants ) -

UFSM -

Pupil premium ' -

" Teachers pension grants . -

. Teachers pay grants -
PE and sports premium A -
Rates . -
Other DfE / ESFA grants - -
Other government grants -
Other restricted funds - -
Pension reserve , ' (5,403)

Restricted fixed asset funds

DfE group capital grants - - A 859

. General fixed assets 89,704
90,563

Total restricted funds ’ 88,284

Unrestricted funds .
General funds ‘ 1,484

Total funds " . - 89,768

Income - Exbenditure

£000-

23,006
359
458
486
768
237
147
225
678

1,484

867

. 28,715

2,460

2,460

- 31,175

~N

1.

73

31,912

£000

(22,379)

(29,255)

(2,079)
.(1,340)

(3,419)

(32,674)

- (32,674)

Gains,
losses and
transfers
£000

(104)

(1,918)

{Continued)

' ¥
Balance at~

31 August
2021 -
£000

3,647

' 2,221

87,088
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22 Funds -

Funds - Company

Balance at
1 September :
2021 Income Expenditure
as restated ‘
£000 £000 " £000
Restricted general funds :
General Annual Grant (GAG) 3,647 .24,699 (24,940)
Start up grants ' - 358 - (358)
UIFSM . o o - - 487 (487)
Pupil premium . - 519 .. (519)
Teachers pension grants - - 70 (70)
Teachers pay grants - 25 (25)
PE and sports premium . - 173 (173)
Rates o f. 290 (290)
Other DfE / ESFA grants - 1,282 (1,282)
Other government grants - 1,343 (1,343)
Other restricted funds (257) 1,506 (1,666)
Pension reserve (8,488) - (1,856)
(5,098) 30,752° (33,009)
Restricted fixed asset funds -
DfE group capital grants ‘ 1,345 1,11 (1,509)
General fixed assets 88,363 32,744 (1,344)
89,708 33,855 (2,853)
. Total restricted funds 84,610 ' 64,607 (35,862)
Unrestricted funds
General funds 2,221 517 . -
Total funds 86,831 65,124 (35,862)

" The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Gains,
losses and

transfers

£000

(894)

.30
9,602

8,738

634
259

893

9,631.

© .
[0}

- W

- " -

(Continued)

Balance at

31 August
2022
£000 -

2,512.

1,581
120,022 -

121,603

122,986

2,738

125,724

General funds represent those resources which” ‘may be used towards meeting any of the objects of the

Academy Trust at the discretion of the Directors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources that are to be applied.to specific capital purposes lmposed by the

ESFA and DfE where the asset acquired or .created is held for a specific purpose.

Restrlcted funds comprise aII other restricted funds received and mclude grants from the ESFA and DfE.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the

.. amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2022.
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22

Funds

Funds - cbmpany

Comparatlve mformatuon in respect of the precedmg period is as follows:

As restated

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start up grants

UIFSM

Pupil premium

Teachers pension grants

“Teachers pay grants

PE and sports premium

‘Rates

Other DfE / ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants
General fixed assets

Total restricted funds

V Unrestricted funds

General funds

~ Total funds

" (Continued)

Balance at ~ Gains, Balance at-
" 1 September . losses and 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure -transfers = 2021
£000 £000 - £000 £000 £000
3,124 © 23,006 ‘('22,377) (106) 3,647

- 359 (359) - -

- 458 (458) - -

- 486 (486) - -

- 768 (768) - -

- 237 - - (237) - -

- 147 - (147) - -

- 225 (225) - -

- 678 © (678) - -

- 1,484 (1,484) - -

(72) 867 (1,052) - - (257) .

(5,403) - (1,167) (1,918) (8,488)
(2,351) 28,715 (29,438) (2,024) - (5,098)
859 2,460 (1,932) (42) 1,345
89,702 - (1,487) - 148 88,363
90,561 2,‘460 _ (3,419) 106 89,708,
88,210 31,175 (32,857) {1,918) 84,610
1,484 737 - - 2,221
89,694 31,912 (32,857) (1,918) 86,831
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22

Funds ‘- : } _ : : (Continued)

Total funds analysis by acavdemy - Group " .
' 2022 2021

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows: £000 £000

Avanti House Secondary School ' e -
Krishna Avanti Primary School (Croydon) o : - -
Krishna Avanti Primary School (Leicester) ' ] v o - -
Avanti Court Primary School ' : S - -
Krishna Avanti Primary School (Harrow) : - -
Avanti House Primary School ‘ : - .-
Avanti-Fields School ' : X : , - -
Avanti Gardens School » - .
Avanti Hall School . C : S -
Avanti Park School : ' o . - -
Avanti Meadows School - ) - -

N

Central services ) ' . '5,250 ‘ 5,868

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve . ' 52?50 5,868

Restricted fixed asset fund - L 121,603 89,708
Pension reserve S ' ' (742) (8,488)

Total-funds - ) : 126,111 87,088

Total funds énalysis by academy - Company
, - o . 2022 2021
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were!allocated as follows: : - £000 - £000

", Avanti House Secondary School - e . )

Krishna Avanti Primary School (Croydon) o ) - -
Krishna Avanti Primary School (Leicester) o . : - -
Avanti Court Primary School , ' L - : ‘ -
Krishna Avanti Primary School (Harrow) ' i - -
Avanti House Primary School A . . - -
Avanti Fields School . - : -
Avanti Gardens School - ' - .
Avanti Hall School : - , ’ - -
Avanti Park School o : : - -
Avanti Meadows School - -
Central services - : , : 4,863 5,611

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve ‘ / 4,863 5,611

Restricted fixed asset fund . © 121,603 75,875
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22 Funds (Continued)
Pension reserve (742) (8,488)
Total funds 125,724 © 72,998

_ Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and Other costs -
’ educatic;nal Other support  Educational excluding Total ~ Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Avanti House Secondary . o , _
School . ‘4,553 (755) 187 1,741 5,726 6,239
Krishna Avanti Primary ' : o
School (Croydon) 489 86 - 52 217 844 -
Krishna Avanti-Primary ‘ ' )
School (Leicester) : 1,075 426 - 88 317 - 1,906 -
Avanti Court Primary ' . .
School 2,211 577 84 352 3,224 ¢ 3,042
Krishna Avanti Primary . i
School (Harrow) : 1,482 226 - TT 309 2,094 -
Avanti House Primary : _ ' '
School . . 1,352 156 80 553 2,141 2,112
Avanti Fields School . 2,035 (612) 188 . 669 2,280 2,285
, Avanti Gardens School! . 674 - 301 - 71 379 1,425 1,286
Avanti Hall School 1,664 ~(949) 145 400 1,260 2,489
Avanti Park School . 1,315 512 58 328 2,213 2,296
Avanti Meadows School s 304 65 : 35 165 - 569 -
Krishna Avanti Primary -
School (3) -~ : - - - - - 803
Krishna Avanti Primary : ‘
=~ School (1) . . - .- - - - 1,843
Krishna Avanti anary . '
School (2) .- - - - - 2,099
Central services . 99 . 4,272 662 968 6,001 4,865
17,253 4,305 1,727 29,359

' 6,398

29,683
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Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - Group

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are
represented by: .

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors falling due within one year
.Creditors falling due after one year
Defined benefit pension liability

Total net assets

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are
represented by: ’
Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors falling due within oﬁe year
* Creditors falling due after one year
Defined benefit pension liability

Total net assets

Unrestricted

. Restricted funds:

Funds General Fixed asset
£000 £000 £000
. - . 120,030
2,738 8,777 1,573
- (5,447) -
- (818) -

- (742) ' -
2,738 1,770 121,603

Unrestricted-

Restricted funds: ,

Funds General Fixed asset
£000 - £000 - - £000
- - 88,363

- 2,221 10,281 1,345
- (5,440) -

- (1,194) . -

- (8,488) - . -
2,221 (4,841) 89,708

Total -
Funds
as restated
‘ £000

120,030 .
13,088
(5,447)

(818)
(742)

126,111 .

Total
Funds
-£000

88,363
13,847
(5,440)
(1,194)
(8,488)

87,088
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24

Analysis of net assets between funds ‘ ) . (Continued)

;N

Analysns of net assets between funds - Company ‘ -
Unrestricted . Restricted funds: Total

Funds General Fixed asset . . Funds
' ' asrestated
£000 £000 £000 . £000 ‘
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are ' : : .
represented by: .
Tangible fixed assets ) ’ - - 120,022 120,022
Current assets ‘ ‘ . 2,738 8,526 1,581 12,845
Creditors falling due within one year ) L (5.615) - (5, 615)
Creditors falling due after one year : - . (786) - - (786)
Defined benefit pension liability - : - (742) - (742)
Total net assets . ) 2,738 1,383 121,603 125,724
Unrestricted " Restricted funds: © Total
" Funds General Fixed asset Funds
: . £000 £000 £000 - £000
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are : ‘
represented by: : . , v
. Tangible fixed asseéts : _ .- ' - . 88,363 88,363
Current assets : ' 2,221 9,918 1,345 13,484
Creditors falling due within one' year . : - (5,376) ) - (5,376)
Creditors falling due after one year - . {1,152) - (1,152)
Defined benefit pension liability o - (8.488) - (8,488)

Total net assets 2,221 - (5,098) - 89,708 86,831

- Pension and similar obligations - Group and Co‘mpany

‘The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme -
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the. Local Government Pens:on Scheme

(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by seven different local authorities (Leicestershire County

Council, London Borough of Harrow, London Borough of Redbridge, London Borough of Croydon Clty of

Bristol, Devon and Somerset. All are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advnce of independent.qualified actuaries. The latest

- actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS related to the

period ended 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £435k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021 £259k) and are
included within credltors .

Teachers' Pension Scheme

" Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contnbutory, defined beneﬁt scheme governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academles All

. teachers. have the optlon to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.
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Pension and similar obligations - Group and Company ) ‘ ‘ {Continued)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to. which both the member and employer makes contributions, as ‘a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Seheme .

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and .
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The

"~ valuation report was publlshed by the Department for Education on 5fMarch 2019.

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultatlon are:
- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensronable pay (including a 0. 08% employer
" administration charge)

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective .date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together wrth the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPl. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in_excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implementeu from 1 April 2023.
The employer’s pension costs~ paid to the TPS in the period amounted te £2,268k (2021: £2,068k).”
A copy of the valuatlon report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions websrte

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme'as if it were a defined ‘contribution scheme
The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in sepérate trustee-administered
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 23.0% for

-, employers and 5.5% to 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event

of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the

Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total contributions made : T 2022 . 2021
: - - . — _ , ' £000 £000
" Employer's contributions _ 744 751

Employeesf contributions - . . ) . 259 241

Total contributions - . . 1,003 992
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24 Pension and similar obligations - Group and Company : ' - (Continued)
Principal actuarial assumptions - ' _ . 2022 2021

Rate of increase in salaries A ‘ A a7 36

- Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation - : . : 3.0 ' 29
Discount rate for scheme liabilities ' o 4.3 ' 1.7
Inflation assumption (CPI) : , 3.0 29

~ Commutation of pensions to lump sums . - - 50to 75 50to 75

Thé current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2022 2021
. : Years Years ‘
Retiring today - : : o
- Males ) . B 221 224.
- Females ' o _ o <243 . 243
Retiring in 20 years -
-Males ' K o : 233 23.6
- Females ' C : : 26.1 26.1
Scheme liabilities would have been a_ffectecI by changes in assumptions as follows:
2022 2021
' , ‘ . £°000 £000
Discount rate - 0.1% : L . ‘ 437 507
Mortality assumption + 1 year : i ) 491 643
CPlrate +0.1% : ' ‘ ' 426 468
Salary rate + 0.1% ' o 233 29
' Defined benefit pension scheme net liability ' . 2022 2021
- L ' _ - o ' - £000 . £000
Scheme-assets By , . 8394 7,842
Scheme obligations ' ' . (9,136) (16,330) -
Net liability . ' ‘ ' ' _ - (742) (8,488)
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The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme -

Equities
Bonds
Cash

Property

Total market value of assets

~

A The actual return on scheme assets was £(436,000) (2021: £1,181,000).

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total operating charge
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2021
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial (géin)/loss
Benefits paid ’
Past service cost

At31August2022 | o

2022
Fair value .
" £000

5,843
1,619
114
817

8,393

2022
£000

2,449

(140)
291

2,600

2022
£000

16,330
2,449
291
259
- (10,178)
(15)

19136

-

(Continued)

2021
Fair value
£000

5,396
1,497
280
669

7,842

2021
£000

1,795
.27
. (106)
202

1,918

2021
£000

11,132
1,795
202
241
2,993

(60)
27

16,330
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24 Pension and similar obligations - Group and Company . (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Académy Trust’s share of scheme assets A :
' - ' ' . - 2022 2021

£000 £000
At 1 September 2021 - ' 7,842 5,729
Interest income” , : - : : -140 - 106
Actuarial loss/(gain) : A ‘ - (576) 1,075
Employer contributions . , - 744 - 751
Employee contributions ' . ‘ ' * 259 241
Benefits paid o ' (15) . (60)
At31 August 2022 | 8,394 7,842

-

25 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities -
: 2022 2021

g o £000 . £000
" Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of

financial activities) ‘ 29,421 (762)
Adjusted for: . : : o :
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income , _ (33,855) (2,460)
Investment income receivable ' (1) ) (M
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable. ' 1,705 1,071
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost . T 151 96
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets - . : ‘ : 2,058 . 1,487
(Increase) in stocks -(16) . (6)
Decrease in debtors . 86 107
(Decrease)/increase in creditors S ' (364) 1,961
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities BRI ' (.8'15) 1,493

26 Analysis of changes in net funds . :
: 1 September Cash flows = 31 August

2021 . 2022
£000 £000. £000
Cash | ' 12316 (689) 11,627
Loans falling due within one year S , (8) (5 - (13)°
Loans falling due after more than one year . - ‘ (42) 10 - (32).
12,266 - (684) 11,582
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28

29

Contingent assets énd liabilities - Group and Company

During the fmancral year, the ESFA made an offer for a financial support package to support the Trust the
schools in the Southwest. This offer is contingent on several factors and therefore it is currently impracticable
to provide an exact value for the contingent asset. : _

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset
for which- a Government capital grant was received, the Academy Trust is’ required  either to re-invest the
proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Children, Schools and Families the same proportion of the .
proceeds of the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of
State. .

2

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Academy
Trust serving notice, the Academy Trust shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determrned by reference
to:

- the value at that time of the Academy Trust's sites and premlses and other assets held for the purpose of the
Academy Trust; and

- the extent to which expenditure incurred in prowdmg those assets was met by payments by the Secretary of
State under the Fundlng Agreement

Capital commitments . :
' 2022 2021

£000 £000
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the éccounts ' ' . 16 44

Related party transactions - Group and Company

Owing to the natJre of the Academy Truet and the composition of the Board of Directors being drawn from

local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
Directors have an interest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

Group
No related party transactions took place in the current year.

Company

. During the year the company made purchases from Govinda's Limited of £1,747k (2021: £1 234k) At 31

August 2022 amounts owed to Govmdas Limited was £45k (2021: £8k) which are mcluded in creditors:
amounts dué within one year. . . .

Govmdas Limited (company number 04977927) is a related party by virtue of ‘the fact it is a subsidiary of
Avanti Schools Trust. : .

During the year the company made purchases from Avanti Services Limited of £2,307k (2021 £1,674k). At
31 August 2022 amounts owed to Avanti Services Limited was £251k (2021: £193k) which are included in
creditors: amounts due within one year.

Avanti Services Limited (company number 10898289) is a related party by vrrtue of the factitis a subsrdrary of
Avantl Schools Trust. -
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31

32

. Academles Account D|rect|on

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such -
amount as may-be required, not exceedmg £10 for the debts and llabl|ltles contracted before he/she ceases to -
be a member . . '

‘Agency arrangements o : , <

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting period -
ending 31.August 2022 the academy trust received £8k (2021: £13k) and disbursed £6k (2021: £17k) from the :
fund. An amount of £2k (2021 £n|I) is in included in other credltors reIatlng to undistributed funds that is
repayable to ESFA. '

Prior period adjustment A -
' - 1 September 31 August

. _ . 2020 . 2021
Reconciliation of funds - . : A : . £000 ' £000
Funds as previously reported ' ‘ . ' R : 75,788 . 73,255
Adjustments arising: . _ _ ' . : : '
Donated fixed assets - long leasehold land o 14,587 14,587
Additional depreciation - long leasehold Iand . : ‘ (607) (754)
Funds as restated = E —_— . 89,768 - . 87,088

: _— _ 2021
Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) for the previous - _ ) . £000
financial period . :
- Net expenditure as préviously reported - ] . . i - A (/615) ‘
Adjustments arising: : : .
Additional depreciation - long leasehold land : ' : (147)
Net expenditure as restated - : o L ‘ o - (762)

Notes to restatement

. The financial statements have been restated to incorporate all of the Trust's interests in long leasehold land,

based on directors' valuations, as at the start of the respective lease terms. Additional depreciation has also
been provided in accordance with the Trust's depreciation policies as set out |n Note 1. 5 as required by the

[y
7
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